OFFICE OF THE STATE
SUPERINTENDENT OF EDUCATION

July 3, 2024

VIA Electronic Mail

District of Columbia Public Schools

RE: State Complaint No. 023-019 Letter of Decision

LETTER OF DECISION

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

On , the State Complaint Office (SCO) of the Office of the State Superintendent of
Education (OSSE), Division of Systems and Supports, K-12 received a State complaint from
_ (parent/complainant) against the District of Columbia Public Schools (DCPS)

alleging violations in the special education program of.-_ (Student ID
- hereinafter “student” or “child.”

The complainant alleged that DCPS violated certain provisions of the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq. and regulations promulgated at 34 CFR
Part 300, specifically, failure to provide comparable services, ensure parent participation,
provide individualized education program (IEP) services, and place the student in the correct
setting.

The SCO for OSSE has completed its investigation of the State complaint. During the course of
the investigation OSSE determined that DCPS complied with its obligation to provide
comparable services and provide sufficient notice for meetings but did not fully comply with its
obligation to provide special education services, place the student in the correct setting, and
provide documents prior to meetings. This Letter of Decision is the report of the final results of
OSSE’s investigation.

COMPLAINT ISSUES

The allegations raised in the complaint, further clarified by a review of documents and
interviews revealed in the course of the investigation, raised the following issues under the
jurisdiction of the OSSE SCO:
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1. Requirement to provide comparable services at 34 CFR §300.323(f) and 5-A DCMR
§3020.5

a. Failure to provide the child who transfers from another State, services
comparable to those described in the child’s IEP from the previous public
agency within 20 calendar days of the LEA’s receipt of the existing IEP, until
the new public agency conducts an evaluation, if necessary, and develops,
adopts, and implements a new IEP, if appropriate.

2. Parent participation requirements at 34 CFR §300.322(a)(1) and 5-A DCMR §§3009.1 &
3009.4

a. Failure to ensure parent participation in IEP meetings by making reasonable
efforts to notify the parent in writing of the meeting no later than 5 business
days prior to the meeting to ensure they will have an opportunity to attend
and providing a copy of the draft IEP.

3. Requirement to provide services at 34 CFR §300.323(c)(2)

a. Failure to provide the special education and related services required by the
child’s IEP, specifically with regard to specialized instruction, behavioral
support, structured transportation support, and dedicated aide services.

4. Evaluation requirements at 34 CFR §300.300.301(c) and 5-A DCMR §3005.4

a. Failure to complete the evaluation within 60 days of parental consent to

evaluate.
5. Placement requirements at 34 CFR §300.116(b)(2)
a. Failure to base the child’s placement on their IEP.

INVESTIGATIVE PROCEDURE
The investigation included interviews with the following individuals:

1. Complainant
2. DCPS
3.

The investigation also included review of the following documents which were either submitted
by the complainant, submitted by DCPS, or accessible via the Special Programs data system:
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GENERAL FINDINGS OF FACT
1. The student is a child with a disability as defined by 34 CFR §300.8.
2. The student’s disability category is developmental delay.
3. The student’s local educational agency (LEA) is DCPS.

ISSUE ONE: COMPARABLE SERVICES

DCPS has complied with 34 CFR §300.323(f) and 5-A DCMR §3020.5, because it provided
services comparable to the student’s out-of-state IEP within twenty calendar days.

Pursuant to 34 CFR §300.323(f), if a child with a disability (who had an IEP that was in effect in a
previous public agency in another State) transfers to a public agency in a new State, and enrolls
in a new school within the same school year, the new public agency (in consultation with the
parents) must provide the child with FAPE (including services comparable to those described in
the child's IEP from the previous public agency), until the new public agency conducts an
evaluation pursuant (if determined to be necessary by the new public agency) and develops,
adopts, and implements a new IEP, if appropriate. The LEA, in consultation with the parent,
shall make FAPE available to a child who transfers into the LEA in the form of comparable
services, as follows: comparable services shall be provided as soon as possible, and all
comparable services shall be in place no later than twenty (20) calendar days of the LEA’s
receipt of the child’s existing IEP; the LEA shall provide the parent of a child with disabilities
with prior written notice before the provision of comparable services; and comparable services
means similar or equivalent to those described in the child’s existing IEP from the prior LEA. (5-
A DCMR §3020.5) The complainant alleges that there was a delay in providing services to the
student after the student transitioned to DCPS with an out-of-state IEP and that the out-of-
state IEP was not fully implemented.

Findings of Fact and Discussion
The student enrolled in DCPS on _ DCPS received the student’s out-of-state IEP on
. The out-of-state IEP prescribed 2 hours per week of specialized instruction
outside the general education setting for reading, 1 hour per week of specialized instruction
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outside the general education setting for math, 25 minutes per day of social emotional support,
2 hours per month of speech-language pathology, 1.45 hours per month of occupational
therapy, and transportation services. The_ comparable services plan prescribed
10 hours per week of specialized instruction outside the general education setting, 90 minutes
per month of speech-language pathology, 90 minutes per month of occupational therapy, and
transportation services. OSSE reviewed service trackers to confirm that speech-language
pathology began on_ and occupational therapy began on _ The
student’s class schedule confirms provision of specialized instruction. Although the comparable
services plan did not include behavioral support services, the social worker pushed into the
student’s class to provide support and suggested adding the services when DCPS developed an
IEP for the student. Records show the social worker started providing support to the student on

. OSSE finds that DCPS provided services comparable to the student’s out-of-
state IEP and began providing those services within twenty calendar days of the receipt of the
out-of-state IEP.

Therefore, DCPS has complied with 34 CFR §300.323(f) and 5-A DCMR §3020.5.

ISSUE TWO: PARENT PARTICIPATION

DCPS has not complied with 5-A DCMR §3009.4 because it failed to provide a copy of the
draft IEP five (5) business days prior to the meeting but has complied with 34 CFR
§300.322(a)(1) and 5-A DCMR §3009.1.

Pursuant to 34 CFR §300.322(a)(1), each public agency must take steps to ensure that one or
both of the parents of a child with a disability are present at each IEP team meeting or are
afforded the opportunity to participate, including notifying parents of the meeting early enough
to ensure that they will have an opportunity to attend. The LEA shall notify the parent in writing
of the meeting no later than five (5) business days prior to the meeting to ensure that the
parent will have an opportunity to attend. (5-A DCMR §3009.1) The LEA shall provide, at no cost
to the parent, an accessible copy of any evaluation, assessment, report, data chart, or other
document that will be discussed at the meeting. Such accessible copies shall be provided no
fewer than five (5) business days before a scheduled IEP Team meeting, if the purpose of which
is to discuss the child’s IEP or eligibility for special education and related services. (5-A DCMR
§3009.4) The complainant alleges that DCPS failed to provide the required five-days’ notice for
the IEP team meeting and received a draft of the IEP only one day prior to the meeting.

Findings of Fact and Discussion

On DCPS invited the parent to an IEP team meeting on _ The
parent responded the same day to confirm attendance. DCPS admitted that due to technical
issues with the Special Programs database, they did not provide the parent with the draft IEP

five (5) days before the_ meeting.
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Therefore, DCPS has not complied with 5-A DCMR §3009.4 but has complied with 34 CFR
§300.322(a)(1) and 5-A DCMR §3009.1.

ISSUE THREE: IEP SERVICES

DCPS has not complied with 34 CFR §300.323(c)(2), because it failed to provide the full
amount of specialized instruction required by the_ IEP.

DCPS has not complied with 34 CFR §300.301(c) and 5-A DCMR §3005.4, because it failed to
timely complete the student’s evaluation.

Pursuant to 34 CFR §300.323(c)(2), each public agency must ensure that as soon as possible
following development of the IEP, special education and related services are made available to
the child in accordance with the child's IEP. The complainant alleges that DCPS failed to provide
the behavioral support services, dedicated aide, assessments, specialized instruction, and
transportation services required by the student’s IEP.

Findings of Fact and Discussion

The_ IEP prescribes 20 hours and 30 minutes per week of specialized instruction
outside the general education setting, 90 minutes per month of occupational therapy, 90
minutes per month of speech-language pathology, 3 hours per month of behavioral support
services, the support of a dedicated aide, and transportation services.

Behavioral Support Services

The complainant alleges that the behavioral support services provided do not align with what is
required by the IEP. OSSE reviewed behavioral support service trackers and found that DCPS
provided the services required by the IEP in addition to extra crisis support as needed.

Dedicated Aide

The complainant alleges that the student’s IEP prescribes a dedicated aide, which has not been
provided. Neither the out-of-state IEP nor comparable services plan prescribed a dedicated
aide, but the support of a dedicated aide was added to the IEP. DCPS reported
that they assigned a long-term substitute to the student’s classroom to support the student,
but that the student will not need a dedicated aide when placed in a full-time special education
classroom for the- school year and plan to amend the IEP accordingly.

Assessments

The complainant alleges that the student’s IEP specifies assessments that have not been
scheduled. At the_ meeting, the IEP team discussed the need to reevaluate the
student to update the disability classification and DCPS agreed to complete a psychological,
functional behavioral, speech and language, and occupational therapy assessments. DCPS said
it would send the consent form for the parent to sign. The parent signed consent to evaluate on
_. DCPS completed the agreed upon assessments and held an eligibility

determination meeting on _ OSSE finds that the eligibility determination was
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completed within the required 60-day timeline from consent to evaluate. Therefore, DCPS has
complied with 34 CFR §300.301(c) and 5-A DCMR §3005.4.

Specialized Instruction

The complainant alleges that DCPS has not provided evidence that it can provide the amount of
specialized instruction required by the IEP. The student’s class schedule shows that the student
received specialized instruction in accordance with the comparable services plan. Following the
updated IEP on _, DCPS reported that it was able to provide only 15 of 20 hours of
specialized instruction required by the student’s IEP. Therefore, DCPS has not complied with 34
CFR §300.323(c)(2) because it failed to provide the full amount of specialized instruction
required by the_ IEP.

Transportation Services
The complainant alleges that transportation services have not been provided consistently and

appropriately. DCPS submitted a transportation request form following the IEP
team meeting. On_ OSSE DOT added the student to a route. Transportation
services were not provided because the address was never verified. On DCPS

submitted a new transportation request form with an updated address and OSSE DOT added
the student to a route on . The bus showed up to the student’s address, but the
student did not ride. The school year ended on . The student did not take

advantage of the transportation services offered.

ISSUE FOUR: PLACEMENT

DCPS has not complied with 34 CFR §300.116(b)(2), because it failed to place the student in
the setting required by the IEP from until the end of the school year.
Pursuant to 34 CFR §300.116(b)(2), each public agency must ensure that the child's placement
is based on the child's IEP. The complainant alleges that the student’s placement does not align
with the IEP.

Findings of Fact and Discussion

Out-of-State |IEP

The complainant alleges that the student’s out-of-state IEP prescribed a special education
setting for most of the school day but DCPS placed the student in a general education setting.
The out-of-state IEP describes the student’s placement as “Services provided both in separate
special education classes and regular setting. Student served inside the regular classroom
greater than or equal to 40% of the day and no more than 79% of the day.” The comparable
services DCPS provided of 10 hours per week of specialized instruction outside the general
education setting align with the placement described in the student’s out-of-state IEP.
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IEP
The complainant alleges that DCPS has not honored the request for an expedited transfer to an
appropriate setting. The_ IEP prescribes a placement outside the general
education setting for most of the school day, including 20 hours and 30 minutes pf specialized
instruction per week outside the general education setting. The student’s school was able to
provide 15 hours per week of specialized instruction outside the general education setting, but
not fully implement the IEP. The school requested a location that can fully implement the
student’s IEP; however, a new location assignment was not provided prior to the end of the
school year. The student will be placed in a full-time special education classroom at the
beginning of the school year. OSSE finds that DCPS failed to place the student in the

setting required by the IEP from_ until the end of the- school year.

Therefore, DCPS has not complied with 34 CFR §300.116(b)(2).

CONCLUSIONS

1. DCPS has complied with 34 CFR §300.323(f) and 5-A DCMR §3020.5, because it provided
services comparable to the student’s out-of-state IEP within twenty (20) calendar days
of receiving the student’s out-of-state IEP.

2. DCPS has not complied with 5-A DCMR §3009.4 because it failed to provide a copy of
the draft IEP 5 days prior to the meeting but has complied with 34 CFR §300.322(a)(1)
and 5-A DCMR §3009.1.

3. DCPS has not complied with 34 CFR §300.323(c)(2), because it failed to provide the full
amount of specialized instruction required by the IEP.

4. DCPS has complied with 34 CFR §300.300.301(c) and 5-A DCMR §3005.4 because it
timely completed the student’s evaluation.

5. DCPS has not complied with 34 CFR §300.116(b)(2), because it failed to place the

student in the setting required by the IEP from_ until the end of the-

. school year.

CORRECTIVE ACTION
1. In order to correct the noncompliance with 5-A DCMR §3009.4, DCPS must do the
following:

a. Train relevant school staff members on the requirement to provide an accessible
copy of any evaluation, assessment, report, data chart, or other document that
will be discussed at the meeting no fewer than five (5) business days before a
scheduled IEP team meeting.

2. Inorder to correct the noncompliance with 34 CFR §§300.323(c)(2) and 300.116(b)(2),
DCPS must do the following:

a. Consult with the parent and relevant members of the IEP team to determine if

the student is owed compensatory education for the failure to provide the full
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CC:

amount of specialized instruction and place the student in the setting required

by the student’s_ IEP.

All corrective action must be completed by the date specified above, but in no case later than
one year from the date of this letter. If you have any questions regarding this decision, please
contact me at Kirstin.Hansen@dc.gov or 202-741-0274.

Sincerely,
Koratzn HNanaan

Kirstin Hansen
State Complaints Manager
Office of Special Education

, Complainant
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	3. The student’s local educational agency (LEA) is DCPS.



